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As we have just learned from our 2017 annual satisfaction 
survey, our member-owners’ satisfaction with Iowa Lakes 
Electric Cooperative is directly related to the reliability and 
a�ordability of the services we provide. In fact, providing a 
good value and reasonable rates accounted for 47 percent of 
the American Customer Satisfaction Index (ACSI) score. 

PROVIDING GOOD VALUE
While the cost of most things (such as cars, houses, eggs, 
milk, stamps and gasoline) has increased twenty-fold or 
more during the past 75 years, electricity has remained very 
a�ordable. �e average electric cooperative household in 
Iowa spends about $5 a day on electricity. So for the cost of 
a typical specialty drink at your favorite co�ee shop, you can 
get 24 hours of safe, reliable power. 

Our commitment to achieving our members’ expectations 
by providing them a good value is a balancing act between 
reliability and a�ordability.  Reliability is one of our top 
priorities at Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative, but an 
expensive one. Each year, maintaining a reliable system takes 
hundreds of hours of planning, maintenance, inspections 
and system upgrades. Because of your Board’s commitment 
to an aggressive preventative maintenance program, and 
local service centers throughout our service territory, your 
Cooperative is able to minimize service interruptions and 
improve restoration times. In fact, your Cooperative has 
had the lowest average minutes of power interruption per 
member for the past �ve years compared to investor-owned 
utilities and other Iowa cooperatives.  

REASONABLE RATES
Your Cooperative is proud of its reliability results as we set 
high goals for the reliability and accessibility of the power we 
provide to you. However, as I stated earlier, maintaining a 
reliable system such as your Cooperative, is expensive. �at 
is why we conducted a cost-of-service study in 2017, as we 
do about every 4 to 5 years, to determine the accuracy of our 
rates. �e study reviews all the costs associated with providing 
and maintaining an electrical distribution system capable of 
providing power to you on a 24/7 basis. �is includes items 
like poles, wires, transformers, substations, meter testing, 
buildings and maintenance, insurance, labor, administration 
and much more. �is is an important tool used in setting 
rates and breaking down the costs of providing service to 
each rate class, fairly and equitably. 

RICK OLESEN
PRESIDENT/CEO

COMMENTS FROM THE PRESIDENT/CEO

           PIECING IT ALL TOGETHER
IT’S A BALANCING ACT
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$5
Amount the average electric 
cooperative household in Iowa 
spends a day on electricity —  
the cost of a typical specialty drink.
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Your Cooperative is committed to keeping rates as low as 
possible while providing members with safe, reliable electric 
service. We continue our e�orts to keep your bill as low as 
possible while maintaining a system that you expect will 
provide you with the electricity you need, when you need it, 

now and into the future.

A CULTURE OF SAFETY
At Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative, we believe 

in promoting a proactive safety culture, with 
the goal of sending each employee back 
home every day. We know that a strong 

safety culture doesn’t just happen on its 
own; it’s a product of intentional training 
and proactive education. We live by the 
saying that “a trained lineman will be 
a safer lineman.” We work with our 
statewide cooperative association 
for crew and equipment inspections 
throughout the year. Our linemen 
attend training workshops so they 
can stay up-to-date on best practices. 
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DOING WHAT OUR 
MEMBERS EXPECT
Not-for-profit electric cooperatives 
aren’t in business to make pro�ts for 
out-of-state shareholders; locally owned 
and governed, we exist to improve the 
quality of life for our member-owners. 
We help our member-owners use 
energy wisely through energy e�ciency 
programs, rebates and incentives so 
they can spend their hard-earned 
money on other things. We work hard 
to control local costs to keep rates and 
fees as low as possible. We invest in 
technology and innovation to improve 
safety, service and e�ciency, which 
work to keep rates as low as possible.
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         PIECING IT ALL TOGETHER
BALANCING THE VALUE  
OF BASELOAD GENERATION 

One the of most notable changes in our industry in 2017 
was the reduced operation of our jointly owned coal plants 
in Iowa, due to low market prices that made coal plants less 
competitive in the energy market. As wind resources in our 
state continue to grow due to production tax credits, negative 
energy pricing results from excess generation. �is causes 
our coal-�red plants to ramp up and down as wind energy 
varies throughout the day.

Certainly, this new generation reality challenges our 
cooperative. We have invested signi�cant dollars to upgrade 
our coal �eet and keep it ready to generate for the next 20 to 
30 years. 

Although we are committed to the value of coal and other 
baseload generation, Corn Belt Power also promotes utility-
owned renewable generation. In 2017, seven of our member 
cooperatives established new solar generation projects. Our 
board of directors supports fuel diversity in our generation 
portfolio. Additionally, these new renewable projects allow 
our member co-ops to educate members and demonstrate 
the cooperatives’ expertise in all kinds of generating sources.

Although historically Corn Belt Power and its members 
served primarily small farms and residences in rural Iowa, 
almost two-thirds of the power our member cooperatives 
sell today serves commercial and industrial members. 
Our board is 100 percent behind growth in our system. 
Businesses that attract jobs are important not only for 
kilowatt-hour sales, but also to members who own the 
cooperatives that serve them.

Much of the growth comes to co-op lines because we have 
prepared for it and developed properties to allow growth to 
happen. We have excellent key accounts personnel at our 
member co-ops. We are expanding industrial parks and 
building speculative buildings.

�at type of success re�ects well on all of us. Indeed, as we 
work at seeing the new perspectives in our industry, there is 
one that does not change — the perspective of doing business 
as a cooperative that serves those who are the owners — our 
member cooperatives and the people they serve. 
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JERRY BECK
DIRECTOR REPRESENTATIVE

REPORT FROM CORN BELT POWER COOPERATIVE
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2017 proved to be a year full of discussion at the board table 
centered, primarily, on improving services to the Northwest 
Iowa Power Cooperative (NIPCO) membership. From 
substation upgrades and enhancements to resources that 
improve how our system shares data that communicates 
power quality and load management, seven NIPCO member 
director representatives, representing over 31,000 member-
owners in western Iowa share one common goal: to carry 
NIPCO’s tradition of providing optimum service reliability 
and excellence in service to the membership…and to keep 
rates steady. 

In a time when NIPCO is faced with the challenges of an aging 
system (some of it is still part of NIPCO’s original build), 
we recognize that improved technology and infrastructure 
requires innovative solutions and signi�cant investment. As 
your Director Representative at the NIPCO board table, I am 
proud of the diverse perspective shared by my fellow director 
representatives and our ability to work together, especially on 
decisions that will improve service to our member-owners. 

�e NIPCO system has approximately 460 miles of 69kV 
transmission line that are 50+ years old and 14 transmission 
substations that are 45+ years old. In 2017, NIPCO began 
an ambitious plan to rebuild 40 miles of 69kV line and 
upgrade two transmission substations per year. In 2017, 
NIPCO rebuilt 42 miles of line and upgraded one substation. 
Already in 2018, NIPCO crews are nearing completion of an 
additional 38 miles of line and two substations.  

Vital to avoiding increased demand charges, the Board 
approved a recommendation by NIPCO sta� and member 
managers to begin the process to move forward with the next 
generation of NIPCO’s load management system. We know 
NIPCO’s load management system as “Switch Makes Cents”. 
�is new system will retain the strengths of NIPCO’s legacy 
system while being able to gain new strengths and e�ciencies 
that will bene�t program participants. NIPCO will continue 
to control the same equipment utilizing its time-tested, 
proven strategies, with the added bene�t of real-time two-
way telemetry and a common backbone infrastructure, being 
utilized by four NIPCO member AMI (Automated Metering 
Infrastructure) systems, including Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative. 

           PIECING IT ALL TOGETHER
THE CHALLENGES OF AN AGING SYSTEM 
REQUIRES INNOVATIVE SOLUTIONS AND 
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
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TRENT WILL
DIRECTOR REPRESENTATIVE

REPORT FROM NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE



This past year, NIPCO took steps 
to protect and secure service to the 
membership, in the event operations 
at NIPCO’s headquarters were to ever 
be impacted. An older transmission 
building at NIPCO’s Salix Substation 
was retrofitted to serve as the new 
home to NIPCO’s off-site disaster 
recovery center. The remodeled facility 
includes dedicated areas for a Control 
Center as well as an adjacent office 
space that will enable employees to 
manage operations, should a disaster 
arise. NIPCO also refreshed the 
SCADA (Supervisory Control and 
Data Acquisition) network, servers 
and workstations with newer hardware 
and updated operating systems. New 
SCADA firewalls were installed as 
another layer of protection and to 
secure communications between 
NIPCO’s headquarters and its disaster 
recovery site.

NIPCO ended the year with book 
margins of $4,588,440, which includes 
the 2017 patronage assignment from 
Basin Electric of $3,244,005. NIPCO’s 
positive financial position allowed 
the Board, at its November 28, 2017 
meeting, to approve a $1,555,189 
retirement of the remaining 2000, 2001, 
and a portion of the 2002 patronage 
assignments to the membership. Iowa 
Lakes Electric Cooperative’s portion of 
this retirement was $61,210.

I am honored to represent Iowa Lakes 
Electric Cooperative in NIPCO’s board 
room and to be able to contribute to 
discussions that improve services to 
the NIPCO membership. Thank you 
for this opportunity.
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BUILDING LEGACY 
THROUGH LEADERSHIP
2017 marked an important milestone for the Iowa 
Association of Electric Cooperatives (IAEC); 75 years ago 
in 1942, several electric distribution cooperatives in Iowa 
saw the need to form a statewide association to promote the 
general welfare of co-op members and foster the growth and 
development of rural electric co-ops throughout the state. 
And throughout the decades, Iowa’s electric cooperatives 
have indeed built a strong legacy of statewide support and 
advocacy through thoughtful and dedicated leadership. 
While statewide departments and services have adapted over 
the years in response to the needs of member cooperatives, 
I can con�dently report that IAEC continues to provide its 
members with valuable resources and vital functions. And 
we recognize that it all started from the strong leadership and 
vision of our founding incorporators 75 years ago. 

SENDING HELP FOLLOWING 
HURRICANE IRMA
IAEC’s safety & loss control department coordinated 
several mutual aid e�orts in 2017. �e largest e�ort 
involved 46 linemen and 26 vehicles traveling to Okefenoke 
Rural Electric Membership Corporation along the Florida-
Georgia line in September to aid in restoration e�orts 
following Hurricane Irma.   

STATEWIDE ADVOCACY 
EFFORTS
On a statewide level, IAEC advocated with member 
cooperatives and achieved several successes during the 
2017 legislative session. We were able to experience some 
regulatory relief by rolling back reporting requirements to 
the Iowa Utilities Board and we continued to protect our 
infrastructure from unwanted pole attachments. Perhaps 
most importantly, electric co-ops helped lead e�orts to 
clarify and expand Iowa’s Move Over or Slow Down law in 
order to protect our most valuable resource, our employees. 

MOVE OVER IOWA  
SAFETY CAMPAIGN
To protect employees working on Iowa’s roadways, the 
IAEC coordinated a joint public awareness campaign with 
other Iowa utility organizations to educate drivers on Iowa’s 
newly expanded Move Over or Slow Down law, which now 
applies to utility and maintenance vehicles. �e Move Over 
Iowa campaign encourages motorists to sign an online 
pledge and highlights the issue of distracted driving as being 
one reason why drivers might not give line workers room 
to perform their jobs safely. Attracting the attention of Gov. 
Kim Reynolds, the campaign was the focus of her weekly 
press conference on July 10, generating widespread media 
attention.  

           PIECING IT ALL TOGETHER
COORDINATION 
THROUGH LEADERSHIP
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NEAL HELDT
DISTRICT 7
DIRECTOR REPRESENTATIVE

REPORT FROM IOWA ASSOCIATION OF ELECTRIC COOPERATIVES



YOUR COOPERATIVE’S 
LINEMEN TRAVELED TO 
GEORGIA TO RESTORE 
POWER IN THE WAKE 
OF HURRICANE IRMA
 

\In the electric industry, Mother Nature’s 

worst brings out our best, and the same can 

be said in the wake of Hurricane Irma. 

In the early morning hours of Sept. 11, 

Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative’s crew 

of five linemen and three trucks led the 

way as linemen from 15 of Iowa’s electric 

cooperatives headed out to Okefenoke Rural 

Electric Membership Corporation (REMC) 

in southeast Georgia to help restore extensive 

power outages caused by Hurricane Irma. 

Nationwide, 4,200 electric cooperative 

linemen from more than 25 states were 

participating in providing mutual aid to 

Florida and Georgia. “Cooperation among 

cooperatives” is one of the seven core 

principles that guide all electric cooperatives 

across the country, and it includes providing 

mutual aid to other cooperatives in need.

1 Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative leads a 

convoy of 46 linemen and 26 vehicles, from 

15 different electric cooperatives in Iowa, 

as they head out to southeast Georgia to 

assist in outage restoration efforts following 

Hurricane Irma. 

2 Your Cooperative’s linemen returned 

home safely on Sept. 19. These noble 

linemen gave up nine days away from their 

homes and families to help restore power 

so the victims of hurricane Irma could start 

to rebuild their homes and businesses. They 

were Pat Walsh, foreman, Alta service center; 

Cody Bartling, foreman, Spencer service 

center; Mat Kilgore, lineman, Estherville 

service center; Cody Hantelman, lineman, 

Alta service center; and Reid Lammers, 

lineman, Emmetsburg service center.
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 A note of thanks from a victim of Irma posted on our Facebook site.

Please extend a sincere THANK YOU to all of the hard working linemen you 
sent down to help in Central Florida. We are extremely grateful for all of their 
tireless efforts to help get our communities back and running and know it 
would not have been completed this efficiently without your help.

2

2

1

Image courtesy of Access Energy Cooperative.



For more than three decades, Iowa Area Development 
Group (IADG) has been a proud partner working with 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative directors and sta� to design 
and implement strategies and projects for business and 
community development. Your ILEC leaders recognize that 
“piecing it all together” includes encouraging investment, job 
creation, and quality of life for the members and communities 
the cooperative serves. 

When members and communities prosper…your 
cooperative prospers. As such, ILEC has developed a strong 
and multi-faceted program of economic development. 
Your cooperative’s commitment to economic development 
includes a wide variety of programs and services aimed at 
fostering growth and prosperity throughout the region. 

One of the most direct and inclusive ways your cooperative 
serves the area is by encouraging the sta� to volunteer and 
to be involved in community a�airs. ILEC sta� generously 
give their time and talent to area schools, community 
organizations, special projects, and events that enhance 
quality of life for area residents and visitors. As members, 
you’re invited to help support many of these e�orts through 
a special program called Operation Round Up. 

Another way ILEC encourages the prosperity of its members 
is with technical assistance and energy saving advice and 
recommendations for businesses, industries, and households.
While individual and family budgets bene�t from adopting 
energy e�ciency e�orts and improvements, ILEC energy 

advice and consultancy also extends to helping businesses 
and industries become more efficient and profitable. 
ILEC promotes economic development and sustainability 
through renewable energy education and expertise as 
well. Your cooperative continues to be a leader in advising 
and facilitating appropriate solar and wind projects. �e 
tangibility of this commitment can be observed by members 
when they visit ILEC headquarters and see the community 
solar array that was completed in 2016.

Piecing it all together for members and communities means 
that ILEC leaders are also instrumentally involved in local 
and regional economic development organizations and 
their initiatives. One special example of your cooperative’s 
leadership came this year as ILEC helped secure a USDA 
Rural Development grant to help build a new speculative 
building in the East Lake Industrial Park in Spirit Lake. 

�is economic development strategy has been successfully 
employed throughout the ILEC service territory going back 
as far in time as 1987. With previous involvement in helping 
plan and build eight industrial parks and three shell buildings, 
your cooperative leaders know this is a proven strategy for 
attracting new investment, creating jobs for members, and 
diversifying cooperative sales and revenues.  

Our organization will join ILEC, Iowa Lakes Corridor, and 
Corn Belt Power in marketing and promoting this building 
and the entire region. 

           PIECING IT ALL TOGETHER
FOR OUR MEMBERS  
AND COMMUNITIES
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RAND FISHER
PRESIDENT, IOWA AREA
DEVELOPMENT GROUP

REPORT FROM IOWA AREA DEVELOPMENT GROUP
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PARTNER IN 
PROGRESS

Iowa Area Development Group is 
committed to being a “Partner in 
Progress” for business and community 
development. We couldn’t have 
a better economic development 
partner and sponsor than Iowa Lakes 
Electric Cooperative.  We salute the 
organization for piecing it all together 
for their members and communities.

MEMBER-OWNERS
SUPPORT THE
COMMUNITY 
THROUGH OPERATION 
ROUND UP®  

 1 The Milford Volunteer Fire Department 
Foundation received a $1,000 donation 
from your Cooperative’s Operation Round 
Up® funds. The donation went toward the 
purchase of new extrication equipment for 
the Iowa Great Lakes.

DREAMS 
TAKE FLIGHT

2 Jed Skogerboe, right, manager of 

business and community development, 

Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative, 

presents Todd Wetherell (l) and Mike 

Fox, Cherokee Aviation Authority chair 

and treasurer, with a $150,000 check 

for the construction of a new hangar at 

the Cherokee airport.  The Cooperative 

helped support the construction through 

a $150,000 loan from its Revolving Loan 

Fund.

  



Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative, along 
with more than 35 representatives from 
dozens of Iowa’s not-for-profit electric 
cooperatives, had a successful trip to the 
nation’s capital. in April. The purpose of 
the trip, an annual gathering of electric 
cooperatives from across the country, was 
to ensure that elected officials were fully 
aware of the thoughts and concerns of their 
constituents who are served by rural electric 
cooperatives. 

Key issues were discussed with the sta� of 
Iowa’s six Congressional o�ces. Information 
was provided on the following issues:

� Farm Bill Reauthorization: Iowa’s electric 
co-ops urged congressional delegation 
members to protect Title VI Rural 
Development Programs and reminded 
them about the pivotal role many of the 
rural development and energy programs 
play in Iowa. 

� REDL&G Funding at Risk: �e Department of 
Agriculture’s budget proposes a 21 percent 
reduction for discretionary spending which 
would eliminate funding for the Rural 
Economic Development Loan and Grant 
(REDL&G) program used by many Iowa 
electric cooperatives. We believe USDA 
programs like the REDL&G program need 

to be maintained, if not expanded, rather 
than eliminated. REDL&G is a program 
that excels at creating jobs and opportunity 
in rural Iowa.

� Rural Utilities Services (RUS) Investments in 
Secure, Reliable Infrastructure: Iowa’s electric 
co-ops serve 80 percent of the state’s 
land mass; RUS programs are a critical 
component for rural Iowans to maintain 
access to safe, reliable and affordable 
utilities.

� Geothermal Tax Credits: Many electric 
co-ops promote the use of ground-source 
(geothermal) heat pumps for heating and 
cooling, which is highly e�cient and saves 
consumers money on their heating and 
cooling bills. In 2015, Congress extended 
and provided a phase down of tax credits 
for wind and solar technologies but the tax 
credit for geothermal heat pumps (along 
with small wind and combined heat and 
power property) was le� out of the year-
end package, despite being in the same 
section of the tax code. 

 Iowa co-ops support extending and 
modifying tax incentives for geothermal 
energy sources so they are treated similarly to 
wind and solar technologies.
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Iowa advocates met with Doug Hoelscher, deputy director of intergovernmental affairs, and Michael Catanzaro, special 
assistant to the president for domestic energy and environmental policy, at the Eisenhower Executive Of�ce Building 
to discuss the “�rst 100 days” of the Trump Administration, which has included executive orders on regulations such 
as the Clean Power Plan and Waters of the U.S.

On March 22, Neal Heldt, back left, Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative director, joined other electric cooperative 
representatives as they watched Gov. Branstad sign the 
bill that streamline energy ef�ciency reporting.

THE IOWA CAPITOL 
WAS FULL OF ACTIVITY 
DURING REC DAY ON 
THE HILL 

 Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative’s annual 
visit to the Iowa Capitol is an excellent 
opportunity to personally meet with our 
elected o�cials and provide them with a 
local cooperative perspective on issues that 
are important to our business.

 

Rick Olesen, right, president and CEO, Iowa Lakes Elec-
tric Cooperative, and Jerry Beck, left, board chairman, 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative talk with representa-
tives during the visit to REC Day on the Hill.

ADVOCATES FOR CO-OP MEMBER-OWNERS 
IN WASHINGTON, D.C.
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LT. GOV. REYNOLDS 
ADDRESSES MANAGER’S 
LEGISLATIVE BREAKFAST 

 Rick Olesen, president/CEO, Iowa 
Lakes Electric Cooperative, attended the 
annual legislative breakfast in April. A 
steady stream of legislators made their 
way down to discuss remaining legislative 
priorities such as the geothermal tax 
exemption and the Iowa Energy Center 
transfer.  
 The group rounded out the morning 
hearing from then Lt. Governor 
Kim Reynolds, as she discussed the 
administration’s efforts on energy 
programs and indicated that she looks 
forward to seeing the Energy Center focus 
on areas of the Iowa Energy Plan that help 
electric and gas ratepayers realize benefits 
of the research projects funded by the 
Iowa Energy Center.

GEOTHERMAL 
CREDITS ARE BACK
  We scored a big victory in the Geo-
thermal industry when the House and 
Senate agreed to extend tax credits for 
geothermal technologies. The President 
signed the bill  which put to rest an issue 
the IAEC and NRECA have been lobbying 
hard on for the past 2 years. 

KEY INFORMATION:
n The tax credit will be retroactive to 

geothermal installations that took place 
on or after January 1, 2017

n The credits will expire on January 1, 
2022 (SAME expiration as solar)   

n The Federal credit is worth 30% of the 
cost of the system

n The State of Iowa’s credit will go back to 
being worth 20% of the Federal amount 
of the credit



           Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative hosted its annual legislative 
breakfast for its state and federal legislators before the start of 
the 2018 legislative session. �e breakfast was held in Estherville 
on Dec. 16, prior to the monthly December cooperative board 
meeting. �e breakfast was once again well attended and provided 
an opportunity for the Cooperative’s executive team and board of 
directors to meet one-on-one with our legislators to discuss the 
upcoming legislative session.  

           2017 LEGISLATIVE NEWS
Touchstone Energy

Touchstone Energy
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LOCAL HIGH SCHOOL 
STUDENTS EXPERIENCE 
“TRIP OF A LIFETIME”

 Last summer, Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative sponsored three high school 
students on a trip to D.C. Allison Goehring 
of Milford, Whitney Wiemold of Cherokee, 
and Makayla Gee of Spencer, were able 
to experience this fascinating trip.  �ey 
spent six days in Washington, D.C., with 
38 peers from Iowa and more than 1,800 
other students from around the nation, 
some of whom became lifelong friends. 
Your Cooperative has sponsored students 
on this annual event for decades and has 
heard repeatedly how this trip impacts the 
participants for the rest of their lives.  
  

IOWA’S ELECTRIC COOPERATIVES 
ADVOCATE FOR THEIR MEMBERS  
IN WASHINGTON, D.C.

Last fall, representatives from Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative, along with other advocates 
from cooperatives in Iowa, spoke with lawmakers about issues impacting electric cooperatives 
and their member-owners. Advocates met with sta� and elected o�cials from the six Iowa 
Congressional offices. Attendees also spoke with several representatives from the Trump 
Administration, including upper-level sta� at the Environmental Protection Agency, U.S. 
Department of Agriculture, Rural Utilities Service, and the White House. Topics discussed 
included funding for rural development and utilities, pension protection, geothermal tax credit 
extension, farm bill reauthorization, and broadband service for rural Iowa.

Sen. Charles Grassley, left, Sen. Joni Ernst, right, meet with the Iowa cooperative representatives about issues impacting 
electric cooperatives and their member-owners. 

A WORKING BREAKFAST 

Pictured left to right: Jerry Self, regional director for the of�ce of Sen. Joni Ernst; Zack 
Whiting, legislative aide for the of�ce of Rep. Steve King, and a candidate for Iowa State 
Senate District 1; Sen. Dennis Guth; Rep. Megan Jones; and Paul Benson, director.

Pictured, left to right: Whitney Wiemold, Makayla Gee, 
Allison Goehring.
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GOV. REYNOLDS 
APPOINTS RICK OLESEN 
TO IOWA ENERGY 
CENTER BOARD

Rick Olesen, president/CEO of Iowa Lakes 
Electric Cooperative, has been appointed to 
the Iowa Energy Center board, by Gov. Kim 
Reynolds.�e Iowa Energy Center was created 
by the Iowa General Assembly and signed into 
law in 1990. Its goal is to support economic 
development, environmental sustainability 
and social well-being through energy 
innovation, education and entrepreneurship. 
Congratulations, Rick! 

DEIM EARNS DIRECTOR 
GOLD CERTIFICATE

Director Craig Deim, board vice chairman 
of Swea City, received his Director Gold 
Certi�cate from the National Rural Electric 
Cooperative Association (NRECA).  Director 
gold demonstrates to cooperative member-
owners a director’s ongoing commitment to 
advancing their knowledge and performing 
their �duciary duty to the best of their ability. 
Congratulations, Craig!

NEW WEBSITE
LAUNCHED

Your Cooperative launched a website that 
offers members an easier way to obtain 
information relating to energy efficiency, 
education, safety and renewable energy.
The website enables member-owners 
access to pay their bill, stay informed on 
outages and includes integrated social 
media buttons for Facebook, Twitter 
and YouTube. The News and Events 
section is continuously updated with 
important, helpful content. 

 

     �e Iowa Area Development Group 
presented Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative 
with an Impact Award recognizing the 
cooperative’s commitment to project 
development. �e award was presented at 
the April 5 annual meeting of Corn Belt 
Power Cooperative, one of your cooperative’s 
wholesale power suppliers. �e presenter 
noted two recent examples of the cooperative’s 
economic development support: the 
attraction of Innovative Plant Solutions to an 
available building in Estherville, and �nancial 
and technical support for the construction of 
a 30,000-square-foot speculative building in 
Spirit Lake.

           2017 ACCOMPLISHMENTS
Touchstone Energy

Touchstone Energy

IOWA LAKES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE
HONORED WITH IMPACT AWARD



2 0 1 7  A N N U A L  R E P O R T     17

CODY BARTLING, lead lineman of your 
Cooperative’s Spencer service center, was 
promoted to the foreman position at this 
location. The summer of 2009, Bartling 
interned at your Cooperative’s Emmetsburg 
service center. Bartling joined the Cooperative 
full-time in 2010 and worked as a lineman at 
the Cherokee and Alta service centers up until 
his promotion to lead lineman at the Spencer 
service center last year. Congratulations, Cody!

JEREMY MADDEN was promoted to energy 
advisor for Clay and Dickinson counties.  
Madden was previously a lead lineman at the 
Emmetsburg Service Center and has worked 
for your Cooperative for the past 17 years. 
Congratulations, Jeremy!

COOPERATIVE PROMOTIONS

WELCOME NEW EMPLOYEES

REID LAMMERS, a native of Allison, Iowa, 
joined your Cooperative as a lineman at 
your Cooperative’s Emmetsburg Service 
Center. Lammers has been working with the 
Pocahontas and Emmetsburg line crews as an 
intern since May 2017 when he graduated from 
Northwest Iowa Community College, Sheldon, 
with a powerline degree.

CURT STEINER joined your Cooperative’s 
Spencer line crew Aug. 1. Steiner is a Waverly, 
Iowa, native and has a powerline degree from 
Northwest Iowa Community College in 
Sheldon. Prior to joining your Cooperative’s 
employee team, Steiner worked the past seven 
years as a lineman for Spencer Municipal 
Utilities. Curt and his wife currently reside in 
Spencer.

WINNER OF THE 
STATE OF IOWA 
2017 TOP WORK-
PLACES AWARD

 For the second time, Iowa Lakes 
Electric Cooperative has been named 
one of the Top Workplaces in 
Iowa in 2017.  The Top Workplace 
award is based solely on the results 
of an employee feedback survey 
administered by WorkplaceDynamics, 
LLC, a leading research firm that 
specializes in employee feedback 
surveys, workplace improvement and 
the organizational health of a company.  
 Th e survey measures several aspects 
of the company’s workplace culture. 
 “The Top Workplace survey is 
not based on wages or benefits, but 
instead it is how our employees believe 
in the culture of the Cooperative, the 
leadership of the Cooperative and if 
the employee team feels that they have 
an important role in how those goals 
are achieved,” says Rick Olesen, CEO/
president. 
 Olesen continued, “I am honored 
and humbled that this is our second 
time receiving this award.  In 2015 our 
employee team took this survey for 
the fi rst time and we also had a very 
positive response from the judges, our 
employees.”
 Th e Des Moines Register published 
the “The Iowa Top Workplaces” 
winners; a list of 150 companies that 
have been selected as the best places to 
work in the State of Iowa. 

SARAH KOLLASCH, an Estherville native, joined 
your Cooperative on February 13 as a customer 
care and billing representative. Prior to joining 
the Cooperative, Kollasch had worked at North 
Star Bank and Agency in Estherville. She has 
a bachelor’s degree in business management 
from Buena Vista University. Kollasch resides in 
Estherville with her husband and two children. 
Welcome Sarah to the Cooperative team!



ANDERSON LOOKS FORWARD 
TO RETIREMENT

Long-time employee, Nancy Anderson, retired Jan. 31 with 40 
years of service to your Cooperative. Anderson began in the billing 
department processing member-owner bills. She later moved into an 
accounting position.  In 2002, Anderson became the manager of the 
billing department where she stayed until her retirement.  

As Anderson re�ected back on the past 40 years, she said, “It’s 
been a really great place to work. I will miss my fellow co-workers 
but will not miss having to be at work by 7:30 a.m.! I will truly enjoy 
retirement.” Congratulations, Nancy!

EMGARTEN RETIRES WITH 34 YEARS 
OF SERVICE TO COOPERATIVES
 Robert Emgarten, PE, joined Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative 
in 2009 with 26 years of electrical engineering experience. While 
Emgarten was a new face among your Cooperative’s sta�, he was no 
stranger to your Cooperative’s distribution system. He previously was 
part of the engineering team at Federated Rural Electric Cooperative, 
which provided engineering services to Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative and six Minnesota cooperatives. This arrangement 
allowed each cooperative to have the expert knowledge of engineers 
without having an in-house sta�.  Congratulations, Bob!
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 A commitment to service is a hallmark for 
both veterans and electric cooperatives. Two 
veterans on a �ight made a unique connection.
 Shannon Lehmkuhl, Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative wind technician, flew to San 
Diego, Calif., on Feb. 26 to attend the AWEA 
Operations and Maintenance Conference. 
During the �ight, Lehmkuhl and the passenger 
in the seat next to him started visiting and 
learned they were both veterans. 
 The two reminisced about their active 
duty experiences and the challenges they have 
faced during and a�er deployment. �e elder 
veteran explained to Lehmkuhl that he now 
su�ers from a medical condition that weakens 
his muscles, all caused by Agent Orange.
 When the plane landed in Phoenix, Ariz., 
the passengers were informed the terminal 
was not ready and they would need to sit on 
the runway for 30 minutes. While waiting, 
Lehmkuhl assisted the elder veteran to the 
lavatory. Due to his medical condition, the 
veteran lost his balance and fell with his legs 
pinned underneath him, blocking the door.  
 �e veteran called out for Lehmkuhl to 

help him. Realizing the lavatory door was 
locked, Lehmkuhl asked the �ight attendants 
for a screwdriver to remove the hinges from 
the door. �e plane was not equipped with the 
necessary tools, so the �ight attendant called 
for maintenance to assist. 
 While waiting for maintenance on 
the runway, Lehmkuhl continued to 
communicate with the veteran, o�ering him 
assurances that he would be freed as quickly as 
possible. Luckily, the maintenance employee 
carried a small screwdriver in his front pocket. 
With it, they were able to remove the door.
�e plane taxied to the gate and the medical 
personnel came on board to assist the veteran. 
Lehmkuhl stayed with the veteran as he was 
taken o� the plane.
 American Airlines delayed boarding on 
Lehmkuhl’s connecting �ight until he arrived 
and an airline representative presented him 
with a travel voucher to thank him for helping 
a passenger in a time of need. �e boarding 
attendant introduced Lehmkuhl to his fellow 
passengers on the flight to San Diego and 
described his act of kindness. He was greeted 

with a round of applause and was first to 
board the plane.
 “I appreciate American Airlines 
recognition but it was not necessary,” 
Lehmkuhl said. “I’m always willing to assist in 
the time of need and I believe it’s also a part of 
the co-op way.”

 

VETERAN EMPLOYEE PROVIDES AID 

Shannon Lehmkuhl, wind technician and 
National Guard Gunnery Sergeant First Class, 
has served our country for the past 20 years, 
enlisting on April 2, 1997. 
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5 YEAR SERVICE AWARD
Eric Olesen, GIS Administrator

10 YEAR SERVICE AWARD
Joel Quastad, Lineman

15 YEAR SERVICE AWARD
Lori Chrestiansen, Customer Care Service Representative  |  Ann Ingvall, Manager of Customer Care  |  Andy Plathe, Meter Technician

20 YEAR SERVICE AWARD
Amy Howard, Communications Specialist   |  Steve Loken, Operation Services Coordinator  |  Brian Scott, Superintendent of Field Operations

25 YEAR SERVICE AWARD
September Dau, CPA, Senior Vice President of Finance  |  Stuart Gamber, Lineman  |  Shane Helmich, Supervisor of Operations Support Services

30 YEAR SERVICE AWARD
Sue Friesner, Customer Care Representative  |  Rick Olesen, President and CEO  |  Jack Schoon, Energy Advisor

 2017 EMPLOYEE 
SERVICE AWARDS



YEAR TO DATE SOLAR STATS 
(Jan – Nov. 2017)

YTD kWh Projected    211,567

YTD kWh Produced                                219,520

Estimated Avoided Demand Charges
(Jan. — Feb.)
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 Your Cooperative’s two wind farms 
produced above projected kilowatt-hours in 
2017. The 14 turbines combined to generate 
more than 74 million kilowatt-hours, 
exceeding the projections by 2.4 million 
kilowatt-hours.  However, it was the second 
lowest annual kilowatt-hour production 
since generation of renewable energy began 
in 2009. Two factors played a signifi cant part 
in lower production results. First, lower wind 
speeds throughout the year played a major 
factor in kilowatt-hours generated. Second, 
two turbines were out of commission at the 
beginning of the year until the gearboxes were 
replaced early in 2017.

 

 IOWA LAKES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE TAKES TOP MARKS 
FOR KEEPING THE POWER ON FOR ITS MEMBER-OWNERS.
  

 When reviewing the cumulative energy 
production for the entire year of 2017, 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative’s solar 
demonstration project exceeded its projections 
by 6,224 kilowatt-hours, despite falling 1,729 
kilowatt-hours short of projections during the 

month of December.  The main reason for the 
lower production in December was cloudy 
conditions and snow covering the panels for 
the last few days of the month. With a projected 
capacity factor of 18%, the project ended the 
year with a 19% actual capacity factor.

SOLAR DEMONSTRATION PROJECT

           RENEWABLE ENERGY/RELIABILITY
Touchstone Energy

Touchstone Energy

WIND FARMS RECAP
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miles of line
The distance from Iowa to 
the Leaning Tower of Pisa

4,837

One of your Cooperative’s goals is to limit 
the restoration time to an average of 90 
minutes. This is an aggressive goal for a 
rural electric utility with 4,837 miles of 
distribution line. That’s the equivalent of a 
line from Iowa to the Leaning Tower of Pisa.
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 The Iowa Utilities Board reports electric 
reliability data for the state’s electric 
cooperatives and investor-owned utilities 
each year. The report shows that your 
Cooperative had the lowest average minutes 
of power interruption per member not only 
for 2016, but for the past fi ve years. This is 
compared to investor-owned utilities and 

other Iowa cooperatives. This data is the 
System Average Interruption Duration Index 
(SAIDI). Board commitment, an aggressive 
preventative maintenance program, and 
local service centers throughout our 
service territory allow your Cooperative to 
minimize service interruptions and improve 
restoration times.
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ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
WIND FARMS RECAP

IOWA VENTURE AWARD WINNER

Pictured: Rand Fisher, President, IADG; Jed Skogerboe, Manager Business/Community Development; Tim Chris-
tensen, Partner, Spencer Ag Center; Susan Christensen, Spencer Ag Center; Bill Northey, IA Secretary of Agriculture; 
Greg Lear, Partner, Spencer Ag Center; Ann Lear, Spencer Ag Center; Dennis Harman, Partner, Spencer Ag Center; 
Sue Harman, Spencer Ag Center; Jerry Beck, Director, Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative; and Rick Olesen, President 
& CEO of Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative.

ALGONA DAIRY QUEEN INITIATIVE
 Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative partnered 

with, Midland Power Cooperative, Corn Belt 

Power and Siouxland Economic Development 

Corporation to provide a loan to the new 

owner of the Dairy Queen in Algona.  Each 

of the four partners provided $50,000 from 

their revolving loan fund for a combined loan 

of $200,000 that the new owner will use to 

purchase the existing Dairy Queen building 

and necessary equipment.  The new owner 

plans to have the Dairy Queen open from 

February through October. 

DAKOTA PACK EXPANSION PROJECT
 Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative sponsored 

a USDA Pass-Through Loan for $1,000,000, 

at 0 percent interest, to assist Dakota Pack, a 

division of Farmers Union Industries, in its $7 

million expansion project.   

 Dakota Pack expanded its facility to 

accommodate the increasing U.S. pork 

production in the northwest Iowa region.  

The expansion doubled its pork production, 

from 1,200 hogs per day to 2,400 due also 

provided space for new, state-of-the-art 

equipment to provide greater efficiencies 

and an enhanced work environment for 

employees.   

SPIRIT LAKE INDUSTRIAL BUILDING
  Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative, in 

partnership with Corn Belt Power Cooperative 

and the Iowa Lakes Corridor Development 

Corporation have completed the speculative 

building located in the East Lake Industrial 

Park, east of Spirit Lake, along Hwy 9&71.

 The Corridor Future Fund, an affiliate 

of the Corridor, owns the building the 

30,000-square-foot, steel building, is available 

for purchase for $799,000. The building, 

constructed by Henningsen Construction of 

Spencer, features a 35-foot ceiling peak and 

30-foot eaves, utilities on site and sits on 4.7 

acres of land.  
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 The Spencer Ag Center received the Iowa 

Venture Award in December, recognizing the 

company for leadership, capital investment 

and employment opportunities it provides in 

rural Iowa.

 The Iowa Area Development Group 

annually presents the Iowa Venture Award 

to distinguished Iowa companies and 

entrepreneurs nominated by IADG sponsors, 

such as Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative.

 The Spencer Ag Center recently invested 

$2 million in its facility, a 25,000-square-foot 

headquarters, warehouse and service center in 

Spencer’s Green Industrial Park.

 Spencer Ag has been in operation for more 

than 30 years, offering feed solutions and 

herd health assistance for cattle, swine, sheep 

and horses. The center employs 27 people, 

including veterinarians, crop specialists and 

nutritionists.



 Your board of directors approved rebates 
for member-owners who were in qualifying 
rate classes during 2017. �e rebates, totaling 
$432,500 appeared on the March bills.

The March rebates were funded from 
three revenue sources:
 n $200,000 load management rebate 
 n $150,000 revenue deferral rebate
 n $  82,500 power cost rebate

Load Management Rebate
 To show our appreciation to member-
owners who participated in the Cooperative’s 
2017 load management program, a �at, line-
item credit of $45 appeared on your billing 
statement. 

Deferred Electric Revenue Rebate
 Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative has a 
revenue deferral program in which revenues 
collected from member-owners in excess 
of operating expenses may be deferred to 
future periods when they will be recognized 
as revenues. 

Wholesale Power Cost Rebate
 At the end of 2017, the PCA charges we 
passed on to our members came very close 
to matching the wholesale PCA charges your 
Cooperative incurred. Your Cooperative is 
returning the di�erence of $82,500 in the 
form of a power cost rebate.
 

Since the margin rebate program was 
initiated in 1994, your Cooperative’s board 
of directors has returned approximately 
$8 million to member-owners — another 
benefit of being an electric Cooperative 
member.
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           REBATES/DIVIDENDS
Touchstone Energy

Touchstone Energy
$432,500 IN REBATES 

PATRONAGE 
DIVIDEND 
RETIREMENT
 

 To date, a total of $13,937,342 has been 

returned to Cooperative member-owners. 

The amount of the individual patronage 

dividends just distributed depends upon 

the member-owner’s electric usage 15 years 

ago, and how financially successful the 

Cooperative was in 2002.  

$1,429,636
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Retirements Since 1986 — $13,937,342



 Responses to the American Customer 
Satisfaction Index (ACSI) questions 
continue to be consistently high – with 
a score of 87.  The 87 score is higher than 
the national cooperative average (78) and 
as well as the averages for investor-owned 
utilities (75) and municipal unities (72).  
     This survey was conducted last 
November and December. The ACSI 
survey uses the same questions year after 
year and throughout the industry, making 
the ACSI survey the only statistically valid 
comparison that provides a uniform, cross-
industry measure of customer satisfaction. 

Touchstone Energy

Touchstone Energy
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The ACSI is an independent national benchmark of customer satisfaction and is one way for your Cooperative to measure how we are performing in the eyes of our member-owners. ACSI is one of the most recognized 
customer satisfaction indices in the country that is managed by the University of Michigan Business School and sponsored by the American Society for Quality. 
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IOWA LAKES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE
2017 ACSI SCORE

OVERALL IMPACT 
ON ACSI SCORE

ATTRIBUTES MOST DRIVING 
MEMBERS PERCEPTIONS

Deferred Electric Revenue Rebate

VERY HIGH 
OVERALL 
SATISFACTION  

Providing good value for the money . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .27%
 Being involved in the community . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .23%
 Charging reasonable rates . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .20%
 Quality Customer Service . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .11%
 Communicating important information  . . . . . . . . . .10%
 Knowledgeable and competent employees . . . . . . . .6%
 Supporting renewable energy 
     (like solar and wind power). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .4%

 BASED ON OUR MEMBER-OWNERS RESPONSES, THE FOLLOWING ATTRIBUTES 

DRIVE MEMBER SATISFACTION AND THE OVERALL ACSI SCORE.  

2017
ANNUAL
REPORT



AVERA HOLY FAMILY FOUNDATION 
RECEIVES A COMBINED $15,000 FOR 
HOSPITAL’S EMERGENCY DEPARTMENT

 Avera Holy Family Foundation, located in Estherville, has received a combined $15,000 
donation from Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative, CoBank, a cooperative bank serving vital 
industries throughout rural America and Basin Electric Power Cooperative, one of the 
Cooperative’s wholesale power suppliers.
 Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative made a $5,000 donation to the Avera Holy Family 
Foundation in support of upgrading the hospital’s emergency department. �e new emergency 
department will include signi�cant increase in space for treatment rooms, allowing adequate 
room for current technology and equipment and patient privacy. Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative’s donation was matched by CoBank through its Sharing Success program and Basin 
Electric through its matching donation fund.
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           COMMITMENT TO COMMUNITY
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 Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative 
welcomed Graettinger-Terril’s 3rd grade 
class. �e students had been learning about 
renewable resources and the �eld trip to your 
Cooperative headquarters allowed them to 
see and learn about the solar array project.

Ben Krambeer, engineer, Iowa Lakes Electric Coopera-
tive, explained the live energy production from the solar 
arrays using the monitors located in the showroom.

RURAL ELECTRIC 
COOPERATIVES RAISE 
FUNDS FOR CHARITIES 
IN WESTERN IOWA

 Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative and 
its wholesale power supplier, NIPCO, 
along with NIPCO’s other distribution 
cooperatives and several national and 
regional business partners, sponsored the 
18th annual Touchstone Energy® Midwest 
Golf Invitational tournament to raise more 
than $7,000 to bene�t local community non-
pro�t groups and charitable organizations 
in western Iowa. Your Cooperative’s 
share in the money raised was $1,000 and 
that money was donated to Mid-Sioux 
Opportunity Inc. in Cherokee. Over the past 
18 years of the golf tournament, NIPCO and 
its members have raised more than $369,000 
to bene�t local charitable organizations in 
western Iowa. 

Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative donated $5,000 that was matched by CoBank, one of the Cooperative’s lenders, and 
Basin Electric Power Cooperative, one of the Cooperative’s wholesale power suppliers, for a total of $15,000 given to 
the Avera Holy Family Foundation for the hospitals new emergency department project. Presenting the check to Dale 
Hustedt, president/CEO, Avera Holy Family Hospital, Holle Smith, chair, hospital foundation and Sandy Lunning, foun-
dation manager are Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative board of directors, president/CEO Rick Olesen and executive team, 
Basin Electric’s communications & creative services director Curt Pearson and CoBank vice president Rachel Hanson.

 

STUDENTS LEARN ABOUT 
RENEWABLE ENERGY

Jason Thorson, center, energy advisor, Iowa Lakes Elec-
tric Cooperative, presents a check for $1,000 to Nicole 
Mier, left, outreach coordinator, Mid-Sioux Opportunity 
Inc. and Kayla Stubbe, intake staff, Mid-Sioux Oppor-
tunity Inc.



KIDS ATTEND CAMP 
THROUGH CAMP 
FOSTER’S PROJECT 
130 SCHOLARSHIPS

 Your Cooperative partnered with Camp 
Foster YMCA on Project 130. Project 130 
provides kids, regardless of circumstance, an 
opportunity to build positive relationships, 
make memories with friends and achieve 
personal goals by providing kids a life-
changing camping experience.
  In addition, the contribution will give 
eight youth from throughout the eight-county 
service territory an opportunity to attend 
Camp Foster summer camp, free of charge. 
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Amy Howard, communications specialist, Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative, presents Andrew Fisher, CEO, YMCA of 
the Okoboji’s Association, and Josh Carr, executive director, Camp Foster YMCA, a check for $4,000 in support of 
Project 130.

On Sept. 21, 2017, energy advisor Chris Jones gave an 
electrical safety presentation to the Estherville Lincoln 
Central 4th grade students. In addition to electrical safety, 
students learned about safety practices for farm machin-
ery, grain procedures, animals, lawn mowers, first aid, 
ATV and boats. ISU Extension and Outreach hosted the 
Farm Safety Day.

STUDENTS LEARN ABOUT 
ELECTRICAL SAFETY 
 Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative offers 
a youth electrical safety presentation free of 
charge to students in elementary and middle 
school. The presentation teaches students to 
be safe by demonstrating the do’s and don’ts 
of electricity with “Neon Leon” and “Lightning 
Liz”. Kids learn about how electricity is made, 
where it comes from and how it works. Safety 
first, always!

Amy Howard, communications specialist, Iowa Lakes 
Electric Cooperative, presents Jennifer Meyer, Thun-
dercloud district executive, Boy Scouts of America 
Mid-America Council, with a $1,000 donation to sponsor 
the camp.

COMMITMENT TO OUR YOUTH
 Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative has 
teamed up with the Mid-America Council 
to sponsor the Cub Scouts’ Twilight Camp 
Scouting program. Your Cooperative is 
honored to be a part of building tomorrow’s 
leaders. 

Amy Howard (r), communications specialist, Iowa Lakes 
Electric Cooperative, presents members of the Women in 
Denim committee with a $1,500 check. The sponsorship 
helps keep the conference affordable for women of all 
ages.

CELEBRATING WOMEN 
OF RURAL AMERICA
 Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative 
supports the 14th Annual Women in Denim 
conference in Storm Lake, Iowa. The two-day 
educational conference celebrates women of 
rural America and helps them sharpen their 
skills in decision-making, leadership and 
knowledge of agriculture. 

MAKING A DIFFERENCE
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           COMMITMENT TO COMMUNITY
Touchstone Energy

Touchstone Energy

EMPLOYEES TEE OFF TO RAISE FUNDS

From bottom left, Andy Plathe, Zach Herum, Mike Kum-
mer and Levi Quastad.

ESTHERVILLE 
AMBASSADORS 
GOLF TOURNAMENT
 Your Cooperative participated in the 
Estherville Ambassadors 41st Annual Golf 
Tournament June 22. The funds raised 
through this tournament bene�t the local 
community. �e ILEC team received �rst 
place and bragging rights for the second year 
in a row!

From left, Zach Herum, Joel Quastad, Mike Kummer and 
Steve Loken.

ILCC HELDT/LAKER
MEMORIAL GOLF OUTING
 Your Cooperative supported the Iowa 
Lakes Community College Heldt/Laker 
Memorial Golf Outing July 14. �is annual 
outing memorializes long-time athletic 
director assistant, Linda Heldt, who battled 
pancreatic cancer before succumbing in 2007. 
Proceeds from the event bene�t ILCC student 
athletes.

ALL DECKED OUT
 Levi Quastad, top le�, lineman, at Iowa 
Lakes Electric Cooperative’s Estherville service 
center, volunteered his time to help coach the 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative Youth Little 
League baseball team in Estherville. Quastad 
demonstrated his commitment to community, 
one of your Cooperative’s four core values. 
As the team sponsor, Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative donated $135 for the purchase of 
the baseball uniforms.

RELAY FOR LIFE
 Your Cooperative is a corporate sponsor 
of Relay for Life in all eight counties within 
our service territory. In Emmet County, 
the employee team raises funds by hosting 
multiple luncheons and several ra�e prize 
drawings throughout the year.  In 2017, 
your Cooperative’s Relay for Life team raised 
$5,888 for the Emmet County Relay for Life.

 EMPLOYEES 
AND DIRECTORS 
SURPASS 
VOLUNTEER 
HOUR GOAL

 As a Touchstone Energy Cooperative, 
your Cooperative is committed to the 
communities that we serve.
 Employees and directors make daily 
commitments to volunteer their time with 
charitable organizations, churches, youth 
sporting teams, local service clubs and many 
other community organizations. Each year, 
employees and directors strive to meet 
your Cooperative’s annual goal of 3,500 
volunteer hours. In 2017, 40 employees and 
directors volunteered a total of 3,904 hours, 
surpassing your Cooperative’s corporate 
goal by more than 400 hours.
 �ank you to all of our employees and 
directors who continue to volunteer their 
time, striving to enhance the quality of life 
within their communities. Together, we 
have the power to make a di�erence.

Jack Schoon, energy advisor, Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative, makes omelets at the Ag Breakfast. 

ANNUAL AG BREAKFAST 
A SUCCESS
 Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative, the 
Spencer Chamber of Commerce and other 
local businesses sponsored the 30th annual 
Clay County Ag Breakfast. The omelet 
breakfast is a free event to thank all Clay 
County business people for their continued 
support of agriculture. More than 600 
people enjoyed breakfast that morning.

Touchstone Energy

Touchstone Energy
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2017 kWh Sold by Revenue Class Wholesale Power and Local Operating Costs

Captail Credits Allocated to Member-Owners Estimated Avoided Wholesale 
Demand Charges

2017 Expenses as a Percentage of Revenue

Residential
26.42%

Seasonal 0.39%
Irrigation 0.17%Small C&I

20.77%

Large C&I
45.67%

Public Street 0.04%
Public Other 0.43%
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6.10%
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73.7%

Oper. Exp
4.6%

Maint. Exp
2.5%
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1.2%

Sales Exp
0.9%

A&G Exp
3.4%

Depr. Exp
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Tax Exp
0.2%

Interest
2.3%

Other Deductions
0.1%

Operating Margins
2.9%

Other
26.3%
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8-county 
service territory

load management savings

TOTAL CASH PAID FOR PROPERTY TAXES:

 0.791
TOTAL OUTAGE HOURS

PER CONSUMER 
(INCLUDING MAJOR STORMS)

4,200 
SQUARE MILES SERVICED

4,838
MILES OF LINE

$219,100
IN ENERGY EFFICIENCY REBATES

629 million electric  
kWh sold

75 million kilowatt-hours 
in wind generation

$3.2 MILLION WIND REVENUES

12,706
   

8
$432,500

$707,000
66% 

COMMERCIAL
& INDUSTRIAL 
ACCOUNTS OF KWH

SALES

87 ACSI
SCORE
  

67 
employees
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENTS

$171 MILLION 
in total utility plant

MARGIN REBATES

$64 million in electric  
sales revenue

ACCOUNTS
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           PIECING IT ALL TOGETHER
Touchstone Energy

Touchstone Energy 2017 AT A GLANCE

load management savings

  

$1,047,300



IOWA LAKES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016  

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative and Subsidiary 
Estherville, Iowa 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative and 
Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, patronage capital and other equities, and cash flows for the years then ended, 
and the related notes to the financial statements.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Cooperative’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cooperative’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
consolidated financial position of Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative and Subsidiary as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
and the results of their operations, changes in its patronage capital and other equities, and its cash flows for the years 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Austin, Minnesota 
March 19, 2018 

$219,100
IN ENERGY EFFICIENCY REBATES
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IOWA LAKES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE AND 
SUBSIDIARY CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016  
2017 2016

ASSETS

UTILITY PLANT
Plant in Service  $ 170,961,202  $ 165,387,844 
Construction Work in Progress             68,158           270,796 

Total     171,029,360     165,658,640 
Less: Accumulated Provision for Depreciation     (65,832,427)     (61,906,200)

Net Utility Plant     105,196,933     103,752,440 

OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS
Investments in Associated Organizations      26,684,425      24,731,566 
Other Investments        5,126,367        5,386,917 

Total Other Property and Investments      31,810,792      30,118,483 

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents        9,578,007        7,592,506 
Accounts Receivable, Less Provision for Uncollectible Accounts        7,917,817        7,771,439 
Materials and Supplies Inventory at Average Cost        1,577,353        1,546,982 
Other Current and Accrued Assets           437,825           400,056 

Total Current Assets      19,511,002      17,310,983 

DEFERRED DEBITS        1,987,895        2,273,693 

Total Assets  $ 158,506,622  $ 153,455,599 

EQUITIES AND LIABILITIES

EQUITIES
Patronage Capital  $    7,396,976  $   10,002,091 
Other Equities      83,595,222      76,630,625 
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Margins             20,401             15,801 

Total Equities      91,012,599      86,648,517 

LONG-TERM DEBT (LESS CURRENT MATURITIES)      46,562,779      47,678,168 

ACCUMULATED PROVISIONS FOR PENSIONS AND BENEFITS           542,470           437,696 

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt        5,104,500        4,844,000 
Notes Payable           500,000 - 
Accounts Payable        5,049,261        5,454,433 
Consumer Deposits        1,142,143        1,150,983 
Other Current and Accrued Liabilities        1,917,073        1,870,750 

Total Current Liabilities      13,712,977      13,320,166 

DEFERRED CREDITS        6,675,797        5,371,052 

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 11)

Total Equities and Liabilities  $ 158,506,622  $ 153,455,599 
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IOWA LAKES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

2017 2016

OPERATING REVENUES 63,818,732$     62,032,950$     

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Power 47,013,231        44,978,030        
Distribution Expense - Operations 2,929,029          2,787,421          
Distribution Expense - Maintenance 1,595,060          1,510,025          
Consumer Accounts Expense 1,914,398          1,736,840          
Consumer Sales Expense 544,532             575,267             
Administrative and General Expense 2,138,621          2,155,900          
Depreciation and Amortization 4,238,265          4,011,275          
Taxes 97,412                98,574                
Other Deductions 38,974                36,257                

Total Operating Expenses 60,509,522        57,889,589        

OPERATING MARGINS BEFORE FIXED CHARGES - DISTRIBUTION 3,309,210          4,143,361          

OPERATING REVENUES - WIND GENERATION 3,221,801          3,557,046          

OPERATING EXPENSES - WIND GENERATION
Generation Expense - Operations 222,568             233,290             
Generation Expense - Maintenance 578,387             342,320             
Administrative and General Expense 518,452             486,713             
Depreciation and Amortization 1,699,659          2,284,965          

Total Operating Expenses 3,019,066          3,347,288          

OPERATING MARGINS BEFORE FIXED CHARGES - WIND GENERATION 202,735             209,758             

TOTAL OPERATING MARGINS BEFORE FIXED CHARGES 3,511,945          4,353,119          

INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest on Long-Term Debt 1,427,392          1,528,973          
Interest - Other 57,043                56,336                

Total Interest Expense 1,484,435          1,585,309          

OPERATING MARGINS AFTER FIXED CHARGES 2,027,510          2,767,810          

GENERATION AND TRANSMISSION AND OTHER CAPITAL CREDITS 3,596,844          5,678,777          

NET OPERATING MARGINS 5,624,354          8,446,587          

NONOPERATING MARGINS (LOSS)
Interest Income 183,684             143,130             
Net Loss from Merchandising (114,664)            (105,549)            
Other Nonoperating Margins (Loss) 12,889                (14,723)              

Total Nonoperating Margins 81,909                22,858                

NET MARGINS 5,706,263          8,469,445          

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE MARGINS
Unrealized Holding Gain (Loss) Arising During the Period 4,600 4,614 

COMPREHENSIVE NET MARGINS 5,710,863$        8,474,059$        

IOWA LAKES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE AND SUBSIDIARY 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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IOWA LAKES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PATRONAGE AND OTHER EQUITIES 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 

Accumulated
Other 

Patronage Other Comprehensive
Capital Equities Margins Total

BALANCE - DECEMBER 31, 2015 6,960,229$     70,830,470$   11,187$   77,801,886$   

Comprehensive Margins 8,469,445        - 4,614 8,474,059        

Retirement of Capital Credits (252,083)          24,655             - (227,428) 

Transfers to Other Equities (5,175,500)      5,175,500        - - 

Transfers to Other Equities - 600,000 - 600,000 

BALANCE - DECEMBER 31, 2016 10,002,091     76,630,625     15,801             86,648,517     

Comprehensive Margins 5,706,263        - 4,600 5,710,863        

Retirement of Capital Credits (1,383,931)      37,150             - (1,346,781) 

Transfers to Other Equities (6,927,447)      6,927,447        - - 

BALANCE - DECEMBER 31, 2017 7,396,976$     83,595,222$   20,401$   91,012,599$   
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2017 2016
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Margins 5,706,263$        8,469,445$    
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Margins to Net Cash
  Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 5,907,857 6,266,173          
G & T and Other Capital Credits (3,596,844) (5,678,777)         
Increase in Accumulated Provisions for
  Pension and Benefits 104,774 49,385                
Decrease in Deferred Debits 282,821 278,654             
Increase in Deferred Credits 1,334,812 508,070             
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Accounts Receivable (146,378) (482,984)            
Materials and Supplies Inventory (30,371) 408,236             
Other Accrued Assets (37,769) 43,300                
Accounts Payable (405,172) 532,905             
Other Current and Accrued Liabilities 46,323 657 

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 9,166,316 10,395,064        

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Construction and Acquisition of Plant (7,382,417) (6,537,975)         
Cash Received from Retirement of Patronage 1,639,730 447,286             
Issuance of Notes Receivable (337,945) (970,000)            
Payments Collected on Notes Receivable 529,003 694,403             
Change in Other Property and Investments 78,347 (25,966)              

Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (5,473,282) (6,392,252)         

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal Payments on Long-Term Debt (4,851,913) (4,819,869)         
Proceeds from Issuance of Long-Term Debt 3,000,000 - 
Proceeds from Issuance of Pass-Through Loan 1,000,000 - 
Change in Notes Payable 500,000 - 
Proceeds from Issuance of Rural Economic Development Grants - 600,000 
Retirement of Capital Credits, Net of Donated Capital (1,346,780) (227,428) 
Increase (Decrease) in Consumer Deposits (8,840) 25,775                

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities (1,707,533) (4,421,522)         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,985,501 (418,710)            

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 7,592,506 8,011,216          

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 9,578,007$        7,592,506$    

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash Payments for Interest 1,515,629$        1,664,764$    

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING
  AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Change in Asset Valuation and Equity for Unrealized
  Gain on Available for Sale Investments 4,600$    4,614$    
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DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative (ILEC) is a cooperative association organized under Iowa 
laws and statutes. The primary purpose of Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative and Subsidiary 
(the Cooperative) is to buy and sell electric energy to its member-owners located in 
northwest Iowa and southern Minnesota. The governing body consists of a fourteen (14) 
member board of directors elected by the members of the Cooperative to serve four (4) year 
terms. 

Iowa Lakes Development Corporation (ILDC) is a taxable corporation and was formed for 
the purpose of promoting economic development. 

Principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative and its wholly owned subsidiary, Iowa Lakes Development Corporation. All 
significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Basis of Accounting 
The Cooperative follows the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission’s (FERC) Uniform 
System of Accounts prescribed for Class A and B electric utilities as modified by Rural 
Utilities Service (RUS). The accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applied in the case of regulated electric utilities. 

The board of directors as regulators of the Cooperative establish all rates, charges, and fees 
charged to members-owners. 

Electric Plant and Depreciation Procedures 
Plant, property, and equipment are stated at cost. Major improvements and betterments to 
existing plant are capitalized in accordance with recommended RUS procedures. 
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, which do not extend the life of the applicable 
assets, are charged to expense as incurred. 

The distribution and generation plants are depreciated using composite straight-line 
methods and the general plant is depreciated using straight-line methods. When distribution 
and generation plant assets are sold or retired, the original cost is removed from the 
accounts and charged, together with any cost of removal, to the accumulated provision for 
depreciation. Any salvage value realized is credited to the same accumulated provision. 
When general plant assets are sold or retired, the original cost and accumulated provision 
for depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is recognized in 
operations. 
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NOTE 1     SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Cooperative considers short-term 
investments to be cash equivalents. The following is a summary of these items at December 31, 
2017 and 2016: 

 

The Cooperative maintains cash in checking accounts at financial institutions approved by the 
board of directors and insured by the FDIC or FSLIC. Accumulated deposits at these institutions, 
at times, may exceed federally insured limits. 

The Revolving Loan Fund Cash is restricted for making economic development loans to 
businesses according to the Rural Economic Development Loan and Grant Program. 

The Pass-Through Loan Fund Cash is restricted for making a pass-through loan to businesses 
according to the Rural Economic Development Loan and Grant Program. 

Accounts Receivable 
The Cooperative provides an allowance for bad debts using the allowance method based on 
management’s judgment. Sales are made on an unsecured basis. Payment is generally required 
within twenty (20) days of the date of billing. Accounts past due are individually analyzed for 
collectability and accounts determined uncollectible are written off annually. In addition, an 
allowance is provided for other receivables when a pattern of uncollectability has occurred. 

At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the allowance for uncollectible accounts was $443,686 and 
$464,498, respectively. 

Investments 
Except as noted below, investments are stated at cost and adjusted for amortization of premiums 
and accretions of discounts. Premiums and discounts are amortized using the straight-line 
method. Gains or losses on disposition of investments are based on the net proceeds and the 
adjusted carrying value of the securities sold, using the specific identification method. Marketable 
securities are classified as “available for sale” and recorded at fair value, with unrealized gains 
and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive net margins. 
Investments in associated organizations and certain other investments are stated at cost plus 
undistributed allocated equities from other cooperatives. 

2017 2016
Cash on Hand and in Banks 375,838$        4,765$            
Commercial Paper - NRUCFC 7,225,000       6,718,775
Pass-Through Loan Fund Cash 1,000,000       -                    
Revolving Loan Fund Cash 977,169          868,966

Total 9,578,007$     7,592,506$     
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NOTE 3 OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)  

Other Investments 

 

Investments in ILDC Business Park/Residential Developments consist of land and land 
improvements being held for resale and are recorded at cost. 

Changes in the allowance for loan losses and recorded investment in loans for the years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 as follows: 

 

 

2017 2016
Investments Classified as Available for Sale:

Corporate Equity Securities 29,538$          24,937$          

Investments in Business Park/Residential Developments 1,502,604       1,639,153       
Investment in Pocahontas Hospitality, LLC 1,589             1,577             
Special Funds - Deferred Compensation 542,470          437,696

Loans:
Rural Development Loans, 0% to 3% 3,131,121       3,322,180
Allowance for Loan Losses (80,955)           (38,626)           

Total Loans 3,050,166       3,283,554       

Total Other Investments 5,126,367$     5,386,917$     

2017 2016
Allowance for Loan Losses:
Balance - Beginning of Year 38,626$          4,642$            

Provision for Loan Losses 42,329            33,361            
Recoveries of Loans Previously
  Charged-Off -                    623                

Balance - End of Year 80,955$          38,626$          

Loans:
Ending Balance: Collectively
  Evaluated for Impairment 3,131,121$     3,322,180$     

Rural Development
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Allowance for Loan Losses 
The allowance for loan losses (the allowance) is an estimate of loan losses inherent in the 
Cooperative’s loan portfolio. The allowance is established through a provision for loan losses 
which is charged to expense. Additions to the allowance are expected to maintain the adequacy 
of the total allowance after loan losses and loan growth. Loan losses are charged off against the 
allowance when the Cooperative determines the loan balance to be uncollectible. Cash received 
on previously charged off amounts is recorded as a recovery to the allowance. 

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that 
the Cooperative will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when 
due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Loans determined to be impaired 
are individually evaluated for impairment. When a loan is impaired, the Cooperative measures 
impairment based on the present value of the expected future cash flows discounted at the 
original contractual interest rate, except that as a practical expedient, it may measure impairment 
based on an observable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if collateral dependent. A 
loan is collateral dependent if the repayment is expected to be provided solely by the underlying 
collateral. 

The Cooperative considers the allowance based on the risk characteristics described as follows: 

Rural Development: The Rural Economic Development Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) is a 
“pass-through” loan program. The Cooperative receives a loan from the United States 
Department of Agriculture Rural Development and makes a separate loan which mirrors 
those terms to the benefit of the ultimate recipient. The Intermediary (ILEC) is charged with 
operating the RLF as a “prudent lender.” However, by its very nature, an RLF is expected to 
be a gap financer – taking risks when the conventional financing market is unwilling. The 
RLF is not intended to compete with other public and private lenders. As such, occasional 
losses to the RLF are expected. Loans are made from the RLF for projects that will 
significantly benefit rural areas, without restriction to ILEC’s service area. These loans are 
generally collateralized with a mortgage lien on real estate property. 

Although management believes the allowance to be adequate, ultimate losses may vary from its 
estimates. At least annually, management reviews the adequacy of the allowance, including 
consideration of the relevant risks of the portfolio, current economic conditions, and other factors. 
If management determines that changes are warranted based on those reviews, the allowance is 
adjusted. 

Inventories 
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market using the average unit cost method. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)  

Electric Energy Sales and Purchases 
Revenue is recognized and monthly billings are made for energy sold as indicated by meter 
readings received on or about the first day of each month utilizing an automated meter reading 
(AMR) system. In the case of certain large commercial, industrial, or certain three-phase 
metered accounts, meter readings are acquired or obtained on the first day of each month or the 
closest business day thereafter. 

Cost of power purchased is recognized on the basis of meter readings made by the wholesale 
power suppliers on the last day of each month or closest business day thereafter. 

Income Taxes 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(12) of the 
Internal Revenue Code, thus there is no provision for income taxes at December 31, 2017 and 
2016. 

Exempt cooperatives which receive gross income from business activities which are regularly 
carried on and which are not substantially related to the Cooperative’s exempt purpose are 
required to pay tax on this income. There was no income tax expense or benefit for the years 
ended December 31, 2017 and 2016.  

Iowa Lakes Development Corporation had no income tax expense or benefit for the years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative and Iowa Lakes Development Corporation have net operating 
loss carryforwards available to use for 2017 and future years of approximately $102,800 and 
$501,600, respectively. An equal and offsetting valuation allowance has been recorded against 
the net operating loss carryforwards as the likelihood of using the carryforwards is not 
determined. 

The Cooperative has evaluated its tax positions and determined that it has no uncertain tax 
positions as of December 31, 2017 and 2016. With few exceptions, Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative and Iowa Lakes Development Corporation are no longer subject to federal, state, or 
local income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2014. 

Presentation of Sales Taxes 
The Cooperative does business in various taxing jurisdictions which impose sales taxes on sales to 
nonexempt member-owners. The Cooperative collects that sales tax from member-owners and remits 
the entire amount to the taxing jurisdictions. The Cooperative’s accounting policy is to exclude the tax 
collected and remitted to the taxing jurisdictions from revenues and costs of sales. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)  

Fair Value Measurements 
The Cooperative categorizes its assets and liabilities measured at fair value into a three-level 
hierarchy based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique used to determine fair 
value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If 
the inputs used in the determination of the fair value measurement fall within different levels of the 
hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement. Assets and liabilities valued at fair value are categorized based on the inputs to the 
valuation techniques as follows:  

Level 1 – Inputs that utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities that the Cooperative has the ability to access.  

Level 2 – Inputs that include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets 
and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for 
substantially the full term of the financial instrument. Fair values for these instruments are 
estimated using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or 
discounted cash flows.  

Level 3 – Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are typically 
based on an entity’s own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity.  

In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from 
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the 
entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement in its entirety. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Cooperative may evaluate the carrying value of assets and 
liabilities measured on a nonrecurring basis to fair value. Adjustments to fair value usually result 
when certain assets are impaired. Such assets are written down from their carrying amounts to 
their fair value. 

Professional standards allow entities the irrevocable option to elect to measure certain financial 
instruments and other items at fair value for the initial and subsequent measurement on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis. The Cooperative has adopted the policy to value certain 
financial instruments at fair value. The Cooperative has not elected to measure any existing 
financial instruments at fair value; however, it may elect to measure newly acquired financial 
instruments at fair value in the future. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires that management make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 
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terms. 

Iowa Lakes Development Corporation (ILDC) is a taxable corporation and was formed for 
the purpose of promoting economic development. 

Principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative and its wholly owned subsidiary, Iowa Lakes Development Corporation. All 
significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Basis of Accounting 
The Cooperative follows the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission’s (FERC) Uniform 
System of Accounts prescribed for Class A and B electric utilities as modified by Rural 
Utilities Service (RUS). The accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applied in the case of regulated electric utilities. 

The board of directors as regulators of the Cooperative establish all rates, charges, and fees 
charged to members-owners. 

Electric Plant and Depreciation Procedures 
Plant, property, and equipment are stated at cost. Major improvements and betterments to 
existing plant are capitalized in accordance with recommended RUS procedures. 
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, which do not extend the life of the applicable 
assets, are charged to expense as incurred. 

The distribution and generation plants are depreciated using composite straight-line 
methods and the general plant is depreciated using straight-line methods. When distribution 
and generation plant assets are sold or retired, the original cost is removed from the 
accounts and charged, together with any cost of removal, to the accumulated provision for 
depreciation. Any salvage value realized is credited to the same accumulated provision. 
When general plant assets are sold or retired, the original cost and accumulated provision 
for depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is recognized in 
operations. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)  

Comprehensive Margins 
Comprehensive margins and its components are required to be presented for each year a 
statement of operations is presented. The only component included in other comprehensive 
margins for the Cooperative is the unrealized gain (loss) on available for sale securities. 

Revenue from Contract with Customers 
In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued amended guidance to 
clarify the principles for recognizing revenue from contracts with customers. The guidance 
requires an entity to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers 
in an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange 
for those goods or services. The guidance also requires expanded disclosures relating to the 
nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with 
customers. Additionally, qualitative and quantitative disclosures are required regarding customer 
contracts, significant judgments and changes in judgments, and assets recognized from the 
costs to obtain or fulfill a contract. The guidance will initially be applied retrospectively using one 
of two methods. The standard will be effective for the Cooperative for annual reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim reporting periods within annual periods 
beginning after December 15, 2019. Management is evaluating the effect of the amended 
revenue recognition guidance on the Cooperative’s financial statements. 

Subsequent Events 
In preparing these financial statements, the Cooperative has evaluated events and transactions 
for potential recognition or disclosure through March 19, 2018, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued. 

NOTE 2 ELECTRIC PLANT AND DEPRECIATION PROCEDURES 

Listed below are the major classes of plant as of December 31: 

 

2017 2016
Intangible Plant 11,372$          11,372$          
Electric Distribution Plant 104,871,529    99,842,287
Wind Generation Plant 45,882,718     45,487,429     
Solar Generation Plant 439,613          439,613          
General Plant 19,755,970     19,607,143

Electric Plant in Service 170,961,202    165,387,844    
Construction Work in Progress 68,158            270,796

Total Electric Plant 171,029,360$  165,658,640$  
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NOTE 2 ELECTRIC PLAN AND DEPRECIATION PROCEDURES (CONTINUED) 

The following plant depreciation rates are being used for the years ended December 31: 

 

NOTE 3 OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS 

Investments in Associated Organizations 
Investments in associated organizations include capital term certificates, loan term certificates, 
and zero term certificates of the National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation 
(NRUCFC). The Cooperative entered into an agreement in 1984 to extend the maturity dates on 
each capital term certificate to fifty (50) years. These certificates bear interest at a rate of 5% per 
annum and begin maturing in the year 2070. The loan term certificates bear interest at 3% and 
begin maturing in the year 2020. Zero term certificates begin maturing in 2020. 

The Cooperative is a voting member of Corn Belt Power Cooperative (CBPC) and Northwest 
Iowa Power Cooperative (NIPCO). The voting members share margins realized by CBPC and 
NIPCO, on the cooperative principle, based on pro-rata revenues. These investments or 
patronage capital earned by voting members are returned annually as approved by their 
respective boards of directors. 

Listed below is a summary of investments in associated organizations as of December 31, 2017 
and 2016: 

 

Electric Distribution Plant 2.80% - 10.00%
Wind Generation Plant 3.30% - 20.00%
Solar Generation Plant 5.00%
General Plant 3.60% - 17.00%

2017 2016
Investments in Associated Organizations:

NRUCFC - Term Certificates 1,567,187$     1,571,442$     
CBPC - Patronage Capital Credits 21,359,013     19,497,332     
NIPCO - Patronage Capital Credits 1,334,878       1,259,732       
NRUCFC - Patronage Capital Credits 1,183,181 1,112,589
NRTC - Patronage Capital Credits 684,291          733,410          
RESCO - Patronage Capital Credits 198,751          214,276          
FREIE - Patronage Capital Credits 227,564          222,254          
Other Associated Organizations 129,560 120,531

Total 26,684,425$    24,731,566$    
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NOTE 3 OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)  

Other Investments 

 

Investments in ILDC Business Park/Residential Developments consist of land and land 
improvements being held for resale and are recorded at cost. 

Changes in the allowance for loan losses and recorded investment in loans for the years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 as follows: 

 

 

2017 2016
Investments Classified as Available for Sale:

Corporate Equity Securities 29,538$          24,937$          

Investments in Business Park/Residential Developments 1,502,604       1,639,153       
Investment in Pocahontas Hospitality, LLC 1,589             1,577             
Special Funds - Deferred Compensation 542,470          437,696

Loans:
Rural Development Loans, 0% to 3% 3,131,121       3,322,180
Allowance for Loan Losses (80,955)           (38,626)           

Total Loans 3,050,166       3,283,554       

Total Other Investments 5,126,367$     5,386,917$     

2017 2016
Allowance for Loan Losses:
Balance - Beginning of Year 38,626$          4,642$            

Provision for Loan Losses 42,329            33,361            
Recoveries of Loans Previously
  Charged-Off -                    623                

Balance - End of Year 80,955$          38,626$          

Loans:
Ending Balance: Collectively
  Evaluated for Impairment 3,131,121$     3,322,180$     

Rural Development
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NOTE 3 OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)  

Other Investments 
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Total Other Investments 5,126,367$     5,386,917$     

2017 2016
Allowance for Loan Losses:
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NOTE 3     OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS (continued)  

Other Investments (Continued) 
The following table shows an aging analysis of the loan portfolio by time past due as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

 

Available for Sale Securities 
The following is a summary of the amortized cost and estimated market value of investments 
classified as available for sale as of December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

  

The net unrealized holding gain in the available-for-sale portfolio, totaling $20,401 and $15,801 
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively, is recorded as a separate component of 
members’ equity.  

30-89 More Than
Days 90 Days Total

Current Past Due Past Due Nonaccrual Total
Rural Development 3,131,121$      -$               -$             -$             3,131,121$      

Total 3,131,121$      -$               -$             -$             3,131,121$      

30-89 More Than
Days 90 Days Total

Current Past Due Past Due Nonaccrual Total
Rural Development 3,322,180$      -$               -$             -$             3,322,180$      

Total 3,322,180$      -$               -$             -$             3,322,180$      

Accruing Interest

Accruing Interest

2017

2016

Estimated
Gross Gross Market Value

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized (Carrying
Cost Gains Losses Value)

Stocks 9,137$             20,401$           -$                    29,538$           
Total Available-for-Sale
  Securities 9,137$             20,401$           -$                    29,538$           

Estimated
Gross Gross Market Value

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized (Carrying
Cost Gains Losses Value)

Stocks 9,136$             15,801$           -$                    24,937$           
Total Available-for-Sale
  Securities 9,136$             15,801$           -$                    24,937$           

December 31, 2017

December 31, 2016
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NOTE 3 OTHER PROPERTY AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Available for Sale Securities (Continued) 
In general, investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall 
market volatility risk. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investments, it is reasonably 
possible that changes in the values of the investments will occur in the near term, however, such 
changes would not be material to the financial statements. 

NOTE 4 SPECIAL FUNDS – DEFERRED COMPENSATION 

The Cooperative has a deferred compensation plan with certain employees. The deferred 
compensation funds are invested in mutual funds and recorded at fair value with an offsetting 
liability account, reflected as accumulated provisions for pensions and benefits. The cumulative 
carrying value of the investment as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 was $542,470 and 
$437,696, respectively. 

NOTE 5 DEFERRED DEBITS 

As of December 31, 2017 and 2016, deferred debits consisted of the following: 

 

The unamortized loan conversion fees and bond issuance costs are being amortized over the life 
of the loans. On March 1, 2013, the Cooperative made a prepayment of $3,176,587 to the 
National Rural Electric Cooperative Association (NRECA) retirement security plan. The 
Cooperative is amortizing this prepayment over ten years. 

NOTE 6 DETAIL OF PATRONAGE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITIES  

Patronage Capital 
The following is a summary of patronage capital at December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

 

2017 2016
Preliminary Surveys 296,946$        258,561$        
Bond Issuance Costs 22,173            25,721            
Unamortized Loan Conversion Fees 27,539            30,516            
NRECA RS Pension Plan Prepayment 1,641,237       1,958,895       

Total 1,987,895$     2,273,693$     

2017 2016
Assignable 5,706,263$     8,469,445$     
Assigned 1,690,713       1,532,646       
Balance 7,396,976$     10,002,091$    
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NOTE 6 DETAIL OF PATRONAGE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITIES (CONTINUED) 

Patronage Capital (Continued) 
Mortgage provisions restrict the retirement of patronage capital unless, after retirement, the 
capital of the Cooperative equals at least 30% of the total assets of the Cooperative; provided, 
however, that retirements can be made if such distributions do not exceed 30% of the patronage 
capital or the preceding year’s operating margins. No distributions can be made if there are 
unpaid, when due, any installments of principal or interest on the notes payable. 

Distributions to estates are made by a voluntary request of the estates on a predetermined 
discounted basis and approved quarterly by the Cooperative’s board of directors. Discounts are 
retained by the Cooperative and transferred to other equities. As of December 31, 2017, capital 
credits through 2002 have been fully retired. 

Other Equities 
Other equities consist of retained margins not allocated to patrons as follows at December 31, 
2017 and 2016:  

 

The Cooperative’s Articles of Incorporation require that at least 10% of the Cooperative’s 
earnings remaining after provision is made for depreciation, obsolescence, bad debts, or 
contingent losses or expense, and must be added to statutory surplus until the surplus equals 
either $1,000 or 30% of all capital paid in for memberships plus unpaid patronage dividends, 
earnings from nonmember business, and earnings from allocations of other cooperatives, 
whichever is greater, but is not to exceed 50% of that total, as required by Section 499.30(2)(b) 
of the Iowa Code. Surplus at December 31, 2017 and 2016 equals 50% of this total. 

The board of directors has the option to assign patronage earnings in the amount it determines 
necessary to maintain a reasonable reserve for depreciation, obsolescence, bad debts, 
contingent losses, or expenses, which may include a reserve for contingent losses and a reserve 
for electric utility plant replacement. 

2017 2016
Statutory Surplus 16,642,012$    13,737,000$    
Reserve for Contingent Losses 19,581,824     17,805,099     
Reserve for Plant Replacement 43,742,839     41,542,839     
Reserve for Education Fund 24,239            24,239            
Reversion Fund 341,147          309,159          
Donated Capital 3,263,161       3,212,289       

Total 83,595,222$    76,630,625$    
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NOTE 6 DETAIL OF PATRONAGE CAPITAL AND OTHER EQUITIES (CONTINUED) 

Patronage Capital (Continued) 
Mortgage provisions restrict the retirement of patronage capital unless, after retirement, the 
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NOTE 7 LONG-TERM DEBT AND LINE-OF-CREDIT  

Following is a summary of outstanding long-term debt as of December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

 

Substantially all assets are pledged as security for the long-term debt owed to NRUCFC and 
CoBank. 

The Energy Policy Act of 2005 provided electric cooperatives with the ability to issue Clean 
Renewable Energy Bonds (CREBs). A CREB is a special type of bond, known as a tax credit 
bond, which offers electric cooperatives low cost financing for the development of eligible 
renewable energy facilities. The Cooperative issued $43,000,000 in CREBs in 2009. These 
bonds were purchased by CoBank and bear interest at a rate of 0% with final payment due in 
2023. 

The Cooperative obtained a loan of $1,000,000 at 0% from USDA to support an economic 
development project in their service territory. The loan is due in monthly installments of $10,417 
through May 2024. The loan is guaranteed by Brown Development, LC. 

The Cooperative obtained a loan of $1,000,000 at 0% from USDA to support an economic 
development project in their service territory. The loan is due in monthly installments of $8,403 
starting January 2018 through November 2027. The loan is guaranteed by Farmers Union 
Industries, LLC. 

As of December 31, 2017, there was $19,823,413 in unadvanced loan funds with NRUCFC. 

Loan Conversion Costs Payable 
During 2003, the Cooperative converted three (3) of its NRUCFC fixed rate loans to lower fixed-
rate loans. The Cooperative incurred conversion costs of $183,910. These costs are being paid 
in quarterly installments over the life of the loans. 

2017 2016
National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation:

Variable-Rate Notes, Due 2018 to 2041 (2.75%) 3,106,778$     -$                   
Fixed-Rate Notes, Due 2019 to 2044 (2.75% to 6.60%) 29,541,295 31,508,318

CoBank Fixed-Rate Note, Due 2023 (0%) CREBS 17,200,000 20,066,667
USDA Notes, Due 2024 to 2027 (0%) 1,791,667 916,667
Loan Conversion Fees Payable 27,539            30,516            

Subtotal 51,667,279     52,522,168     
Less: Current Maturities 5,104,500       4,844,000       

Long-Term Debt, Net of Current Maturities 46,562,779$    47,678,168$    
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NOTE 8 RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Plan Information 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative contributions to the RS Plan in 2017 and in 2016 represented 
less than 5% of the total contributions made to the plan by all participating employers. The 
Cooperative made contributions to the plan of approximately $1,129,900 in 2017 and $1,080,500 
in 2016. There have been no significant changes that affect the comparability of 2017 and 2016 
contributions. 

For the RS Plan, a “zone status” determination is not required, and therefore not determined, 
under the Pension Protection Act (PPA) of 2006. In addition, the accumulated benefit obligations 
and plan assets are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. In total, the 
RS Plan was over 80% funded on January 1, 2017 and January 1, 2016 based on the PPA 
funding target and PPA actuarial value of assets on those dates. 

Because the provisions of the PPA do not apply to the RS Plan, funding improvement plans and 
surcharges are not applicable. Future contribution requirements are determined each year as 
part of the actuarial valuation of the plan and may change as a result of plan experience.  

At the December 2012 meeting of the I&FS Committee of the NRECA board of directors, the 
Committee approved an option to allow participating cooperatives in the RS Plan to make a 
contribution prepayment and reduce future required contributions. The prepayment amount is a 
cooperative’s share, as of January 1, 2013, of future contributions required to fund the RS Plan’s 
unfunded value of benefits earned to date using RS Plan actuarial valuation assumptions. The 
prepayment amount will typically equal approximately 2.5 times a cooperative’s annual RS Plan 
required contribution as of January 1, 2013. After making the prepayment, for most cooperatives 
the billing rate is reduced by approximately 25%, retroactive to January 1, 2013. The 25% 
differential in billing rates is expected to continue for approximately 15 years. However, changes 
in interest rates, asset returns, and other plan experience different from expected, plan 
assumption changes and other factors may have an impact on the differential in billing rates and 
the 15 year period. 

The Cooperative has also adopted the 401(k) pension plan, a savings plan qualified under 
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan allows employees to defer the maximum 
amount prescribed by law combined on a pre-tax basis and an after-tax basis (Roth 401(k) 
provision) through contributions to the savings plan. The Cooperative may also make voluntary 
contributions to this plan. The Cooperative’s contributions to the plan for the years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 were approximately $102,700 and $100,500, respectively. 



46    I O W A  L A K E S  E L E C T R I C  C O O P E R A T I V E 

IOWA LAKES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

 

 

NOTE 7 LONG-TERM DEBT AND LINE-OF-CREDIT (CONTINUED) 

Loan Conversion Costs Payable (Continued) 
The aggregate five-year maturities of long-term debt are as follows: 

 

Lines of Credit  
The Cooperative has a $10,000,000 perpetual line of credit with NRUCFC. Borrowings on the 
line of credit are due on demand at interest rates, which vary with the prime interest rate 
published in the Wall Street Journal. The interest rates on the line of credit at December 31, 
2017 and 2016 were 2.75% and 2.50%, respectively. There were advances of $500,000 and $-
0- on the line of credit as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

The Cooperative has an $8,000,000 line of credit with CoBank at December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. The interest rates on the line of credit at December 31, 2017 and 2016 were 3.67% 
and 2.87%, respectively. There were no advances outstanding on the line of credit as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016. This line of credit expires on January 31, 2018. 

NOTE 8 RETIREMENT PLAN  

Disclosure Information for Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative Participation in the Retirement 
Security Plan 

Narrative Description 
The retirement security plan (RS Plan), sponsored by the NRECA is a defined benefit plan 
qualified under Section 401 and tax-exempt under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue 
Code. It is considered a multi-employer plan under the accounting standards.  

The plan sponsor’s employer identification number is 53-0116145 and the plan number is 
333. 

A unique characteristic of a multi-employer plan compared with a single employer plan is that 
all plan assets are available to pay benefits of any plan participant. Separate asset accounts 
are not maintained for participating employers. This means that assets contributed by one 
employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers. 

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2018 5,104,500$     
2019 5,195,500       
2020 5,236,700       
2021 5,281,900       
2022 5,330,600       

Later Years 25,518,079     
Total 51,667,279$    
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NOTE 7 LONG-TERM DEBT AND LINE-OF-CREDIT (CONTINUED) 

Loan Conversion Costs Payable (Continued) 
The aggregate five-year maturities of long-term debt are as follows: 

 

Lines of Credit  
The Cooperative has a $10,000,000 perpetual line of credit with NRUCFC. Borrowings on the 
line of credit are due on demand at interest rates, which vary with the prime interest rate 
published in the Wall Street Journal. The interest rates on the line of credit at December 31, 
2017 and 2016 were 2.75% and 2.50%, respectively. There were advances of $500,000 and $-
0- on the line of credit as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

The Cooperative has an $8,000,000 line of credit with CoBank at December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. The interest rates on the line of credit at December 31, 2017 and 2016 were 3.67% 
and 2.87%, respectively. There were no advances outstanding on the line of credit as of 
December 31, 2017 and 2016. This line of credit expires on January 31, 2018. 

NOTE 8 RETIREMENT PLAN  

Disclosure Information for Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative Participation in the Retirement 
Security Plan 

Narrative Description 
The retirement security plan (RS Plan), sponsored by the NRECA is a defined benefit plan 
qualified under Section 401 and tax-exempt under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue 
Code. It is considered a multi-employer plan under the accounting standards.  

The plan sponsor’s employer identification number is 53-0116145 and the plan number is 
333. 

A unique characteristic of a multi-employer plan compared with a single employer plan is that 
all plan assets are available to pay benefits of any plan participant. Separate asset accounts 
are not maintained for participating employers. This means that assets contributed by one 
employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers. 

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2018 5,104,500$     
2019 5,195,500       
2020 5,236,700       
2021 5,281,900       
2022 5,330,600       

Later Years 25,518,079     
Total 51,667,279$    
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NOTE 8 RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Plan Information 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative contributions to the RS Plan in 2017 and in 2016 represented 
less than 5% of the total contributions made to the plan by all participating employers. The 
Cooperative made contributions to the plan of approximately $1,129,900 in 2017 and $1,080,500 
in 2016. There have been no significant changes that affect the comparability of 2017 and 2016 
contributions. 

For the RS Plan, a “zone status” determination is not required, and therefore not determined, 
under the Pension Protection Act (PPA) of 2006. In addition, the accumulated benefit obligations 
and plan assets are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. In total, the 
RS Plan was over 80% funded on January 1, 2017 and January 1, 2016 based on the PPA 
funding target and PPA actuarial value of assets on those dates. 

Because the provisions of the PPA do not apply to the RS Plan, funding improvement plans and 
surcharges are not applicable. Future contribution requirements are determined each year as 
part of the actuarial valuation of the plan and may change as a result of plan experience.  

At the December 2012 meeting of the I&FS Committee of the NRECA board of directors, the 
Committee approved an option to allow participating cooperatives in the RS Plan to make a 
contribution prepayment and reduce future required contributions. The prepayment amount is a 
cooperative’s share, as of January 1, 2013, of future contributions required to fund the RS Plan’s 
unfunded value of benefits earned to date using RS Plan actuarial valuation assumptions. The 
prepayment amount will typically equal approximately 2.5 times a cooperative’s annual RS Plan 
required contribution as of January 1, 2013. After making the prepayment, for most cooperatives 
the billing rate is reduced by approximately 25%, retroactive to January 1, 2013. The 25% 
differential in billing rates is expected to continue for approximately 15 years. However, changes 
in interest rates, asset returns, and other plan experience different from expected, plan 
assumption changes and other factors may have an impact on the differential in billing rates and 
the 15 year period. 

The Cooperative has also adopted the 401(k) pension plan, a savings plan qualified under 
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan allows employees to defer the maximum 
amount prescribed by law combined on a pre-tax basis and an after-tax basis (Roth 401(k) 
provision) through contributions to the savings plan. The Cooperative may also make voluntary 
contributions to this plan. The Cooperative’s contributions to the plan for the years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 were approximately $102,700 and $100,500, respectively. 

IOWA LAKES ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE AND SUBSIDIARY 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 AND 2016 
 
 
 

 

 

NOTE 8 RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED) 

Plan Information 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative contributions to the RS Plan in 2017 and in 2016 represented 
less than 5% of the total contributions made to the plan by all participating employers. The 
Cooperative made contributions to the plan of approximately $1,129,900 in 2017 and $1,080,500 
in 2016. There have been no significant changes that affect the comparability of 2017 and 2016 
contributions. 

For the RS Plan, a “zone status” determination is not required, and therefore not determined, 
under the Pension Protection Act (PPA) of 2006. In addition, the accumulated benefit obligations 
and plan assets are not determined or allocated separately by individual employer. In total, the 
RS Plan was over 80% funded on January 1, 2017 and January 1, 2016 based on the PPA 
funding target and PPA actuarial value of assets on those dates. 

Because the provisions of the PPA do not apply to the RS Plan, funding improvement plans and 
surcharges are not applicable. Future contribution requirements are determined each year as 
part of the actuarial valuation of the plan and may change as a result of plan experience.  

At the December 2012 meeting of the I&FS Committee of the NRECA board of directors, the 
Committee approved an option to allow participating cooperatives in the RS Plan to make a 
contribution prepayment and reduce future required contributions. The prepayment amount is a 
cooperative’s share, as of January 1, 2013, of future contributions required to fund the RS Plan’s 
unfunded value of benefits earned to date using RS Plan actuarial valuation assumptions. The 
prepayment amount will typically equal approximately 2.5 times a cooperative’s annual RS Plan 
required contribution as of January 1, 2013. After making the prepayment, for most cooperatives 
the billing rate is reduced by approximately 25%, retroactive to January 1, 2013. The 25% 
differential in billing rates is expected to continue for approximately 15 years. However, changes 
in interest rates, asset returns, and other plan experience different from expected, plan 
assumption changes and other factors may have an impact on the differential in billing rates and 
the 15 year period. 

The Cooperative has also adopted the 401(k) pension plan, a savings plan qualified under 
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. The plan allows employees to defer the maximum 
amount prescribed by law combined on a pre-tax basis and an after-tax basis (Roth 401(k) 
provision) through contributions to the savings plan. The Cooperative may also make voluntary 
contributions to this plan. The Cooperative’s contributions to the plan for the years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 were approximately $102,700 and $100,500, respectively. 
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NOTE 9     ACCUMULATED PROVISIONS FOR PENSION AND BENEFITS 

The following is a summary of accumulated provisions for pensions and benefits at 
December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

 

The Cooperative has a deferred compensation plan covering certain key employees.  

NOTE 10    DEFERRED CREDITS 

Deferred credits at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows: 

 

Effective December 19, 1996, the Cooperative reached an agreement with RUS and NRUCFC 
wherein RUS accepted $7,050,208 as payment in full on all outstanding RUS notes. As a result 
of the RUS buyout and NRUCFC’s refinancing arrangement, the Cooperative realized a 
$1,702,033 gain. This gain is being amortized on the effective interest method over the 
remaining lives of the original notes. 

Deferred revenue totaled $6,000,000 and $5,000,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. All deferred revenue plans were approved by the board of directors. The 
Cooperative will recognize deferred revenues depending upon forecasted cost of wholesale 
power supply, the anticipated loss of certain renewable energy tax incentives, and forecasted 
increases in maintenance expenses due to aging wind energy property. In 2017, the Cooperative 
deferred $1,150,000 of margins and recognized $150,000 of deferred margins. 

NOTE 11    COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The Cooperative has entered into an agreement to guarantee the debt of Heartland Security 
Services, LLC. The maximum guaranteed amount is $28,889 and there is no current exposure 
as of December 31, 2017. 

The Cooperative has entered into long-term all requirements contracts for the purchase of its 
wholesale electric power and energy requirements from Corn Belt Power Cooperative and 
Northwest Iowa Power Cooperative through the year 2075. 

2017 2016
Deferred Compensation Plan 542,470$           437,696$           

2017 2016
Deferred Gain on RUS Debt Buyout 103,762$        130,513$        
Deferred Revenue 6,000,000       5,000,000       
Economic Development Credits 95,509            122,550          
Special Equipment Installation Costs 362,700          -                    
Customer Advances for Construction 97,050            100,393          
Other Deferred Credits 16,776            17,596            

Total 6,675,797$     5,371,052$     
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Organization 
Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative (ILEC) is a cooperative association organized under Iowa 
laws and statutes. The primary purpose of Iowa Lakes Electric Cooperative and Subsidiary 
(the Cooperative) is to buy and sell electric energy to its member-owners located in 
northwest Iowa and southern Minnesota. The governing body consists of a fourteen (14) 
member board of directors elected by the members of the Cooperative to serve four (4) year 
terms. 

Iowa Lakes Development Corporation (ILDC) is a taxable corporation and was formed for 
the purpose of promoting economic development. 

Principles of Consolidation 
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Iowa Lakes Electric 
Cooperative and its wholly owned subsidiary, Iowa Lakes Development Corporation. All 
significant intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Basis of Accounting 
The Cooperative follows the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission’s (FERC) Uniform 
System of Accounts prescribed for Class A and B electric utilities as modified by Rural 
Utilities Service (RUS). The accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America as applied in the case of regulated electric utilities. 

The board of directors as regulators of the Cooperative establish all rates, charges, and fees 
charged to members-owners. 

Electric Plant and Depreciation Procedures 
Plant, property, and equipment are stated at cost. Major improvements and betterments to 
existing plant are capitalized in accordance with recommended RUS procedures. 
Expenditures for maintenance and repairs, which do not extend the life of the applicable 
assets, are charged to expense as incurred. 

The distribution and generation plants are depreciated using composite straight-line 
methods and the general plant is depreciated using straight-line methods. When distribution 
and generation plant assets are sold or retired, the original cost is removed from the 
accounts and charged, together with any cost of removal, to the accumulated provision for 
depreciation. Any salvage value realized is credited to the same accumulated provision. 
When general plant assets are sold or retired, the original cost and accumulated provision 
for depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is recognized in 
operations. 
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